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IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED é
BY THE OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION FOR
THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

APPLICATION OF XTO ENERGY, INC. CASE NO. 15020 %
FOR POOL CONTRACTION, POOL EXPANSION
AND NONSTANDARD SPACING AND PRORATION

UNIT AND COMPULSORY POOLING, SAN JUAN C]F%{(;IﬁJ/xL

COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
EXAMINER HEARING
July 12, 2013

Santa Fe, New Mexico e

BEFORE: RICHARD EZEANYIM, CHIEF EXAMINER -
DAVID K. BROOKS, LEGAL EXAMINER
PHILLIP GOETZE, TECHNICAL EXAMINER

This matter came on for hearing before the
New Mexico 0Oil Conservation Division, Richard Ezeanyim,
Chief Examiner, David K. Brooks, Legal Examiner, and
Phillip Goetze, Technical Examiner, on Friday, July 12,
2013, at the New Mexico Energy, Minerals and WNatural
Resources Department, 1220 South St. Francis Drive,
Porter Hall, Room 102, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

REPORTED BY: Mary C. Hankins, CCR, RPR
New Mexico CCR #20
Paul Baca Professional Court Reporters
500 4th Street, Northwest, Suite 105
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

09e107cd-e9f7-4d7a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



Page 2 |
1 APPEARANCES »

2 FOR APPLICANT XTO ENERGY, INC.:

3 JAMES G. BRUCE, ESQ.
Post Office Box 1056
4 Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504
(505) 982-2043
5 jamesbruc@aol.com
6
7 INDEX
PAGE
8 Case Number 15020 Called 3
9 XTO Energy, Inc.'s Case-in-Chief:
10 Witnesses:
11 Cy Zimmerman:
12 Direct Examination by Mr. Bruce 3,18
Cross-Examination by Examiner Ezeanyim 12
13
Charles Musekamp:
14
Direct Examination by Mr. Bruce 19
15 Cross-Examination by Examiner Goetze 27
Cross-Examination by Examiner Ezeanyim 277
16 Cross—-Examination by Examiner Brooks 35
17 Proceedings Conclude 36
18 Certificate of Court Reporter 37
19
20 EXHIBITS OFFERED AND ADMITTED
21 XTO Energy, Inc. Exhibit Numbers 1A, 1B through 11 11
XTO Energy, Inc. Exhibit Numbers 12 through 16 26
22
23
24
25

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

00e107cd-e9f7-4d7a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



Page 3
1 (9:11 a.m.)

2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Now we call Case Number
3 15020, application of XTO Energy, Inc. for pool

4 contraction, pool expansion and nonstandard spacing and

5 proration unit and compulsory pooling, San Juan County,

© New Mexico.

7 Call for appearances.

8 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce of

9 Santa Fe representing the Applicant. I have two %
10 witnesses.

11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Any other appearances?

12 Will witnesses stand up and state your name %
13 and be sworn? %
14 MR. ZIMMERMAN: Cy Zimmerman.

15 MR. MUSEKAMP: Charles Musekamp. %
16 (Mr. Zimmerman and Mr. Musekamp sworn.)

17 CY ZIMMERMAN,

18 after having been first duly sworn under oath, was

19 questioned and testified as follows:
20 DIRECT EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. BRUCE:

22 Q. Mr. Zimmerman, where do you reside?
23 A. I reside in Fort Worth, Texas.

24 Q. Who do you work for?

25 A. XTO Energy.

ps
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0. And what is your job with XTO?

A. I'm an assoclate landman.

Q. Have you previously testified before this
Division?

A. Yes, I have.

Q. And were your credentials as an expert

petroleum landman accepted as a matter of record?
A. Yes.
Q. And does your area of responsibility at XTO
include this portion of northwest New Mexico?
A. Yes, it does.
Q. And are you familiar with the land matters
involved in this case?
A. Yes, I am.
MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr.
Zimmerman as an expert petroleum landman.
EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Zimmerman is so

qualified.

Page 4 |

0. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Zimmerman, would you please

identify Exhibi@

A. Yes. Exhibit 1A is a C-102 which shows our
nonstandard unit in the Mancos Formation. It is
comprised of the north half of Section 16 and the

northeast quarter of Section 17 of Township 29 North,

Range 14 West, which is the project area for XTO's Ropco

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 16-1H well. The well is located in the ?

2 northeast-northeast quarter of Section 16, and then it
3 will be drilled south and to the west in the terminus of

4 the southwest-northeast quarter of Section 17. g

5 Q. What pools are currently involved in this well

6 unit? - ’Ml'ﬁ»M“*\\\\

7 A. There are two poolé) In the south half of the
w/.\’/—/ ‘/,A

8 northwest quarter of Section 16, there is the

9 haCha-Gallup pool, whighfigmgg_gii“Egglﬂ§gégggwit SQM“W

10 acres. The remaining acreage in the well unit is the
~— N

~

11 Basin Mancos pool, which is spaced on 320 acres.
N e T — T e e T
12 Q. What does XTO seek in this case?
13 A. We seek to contract the ChaCha-Gallup pool by

14 removing the south half of the northwest quarter of
15 Section 16 and expand the Basin Mancos pool by adding
16 that 80 acres. That way all the acreage in the well

17 unit will be on one pool to satisfy the terms of Order
/_/"—\“\__ VNP T e P .

e _——
S —— _— — —

18 R-13714. And we also seek approval of the nonstandard

—— N — —

19 unit and point of all interests in the nonstandard unit.
20 Q. And the order you just mentioned, R-13714,
21 denied pooling because tE?EEMW?EE;EﬂZJiEEEHEEE;EESiéwiﬁz
22 he project area, correct?

—_—
23 A. That is correct.
24 Q. If you look at the other acreage in Sectionsw}6u
25 and 17, who is the primary w?{%ing intefgét?

T T R
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A. XTO owns or controls that acreage, so nobody's
being excluded from the well unit due to land ownership.

Q. I refer you to Exhibit 1B, and could you

e

discuss any other reasons for the nonstandard unit?
A. Yes. Exhibit 1B is an aerial photo of the well

unit. As you can see, we're placing the well near an__ ?

exiting well site located in the northeast-northeast

~ —

quarter of Sébtion )6, and it's also near the highway,

~

9 &which minimizes surface disturbance.

- -

5 ~

In addition to drilling the well as we
propose, it will allow us to access reserves without

distﬁ;bing farmland and residential area.

e e s e 2 o e

0. And the residential area is more into Section
1772 )
M A. That is correct.
Q. And Whef?.th? surface location is, it looks

——
~

like it is Sbméwhat hilly;t;b there 1is no farming on
that land either?

A. That is correct. Yes.

Q. What is the working interest ownership in the
well unit? And I refer you to Exhibit 2.

A, Exhibit 2 is Exhibit A to the JOA. It lists..—

the interest owners in the well and their working
P \"“‘_\M e b At et i,

s . AR T,

interest percentages.
interest percentages.

Q. Who do you seek to pool?
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A. We seek to pool the twg_unleaeed&mineral owners «

that are llsted at the bottom of EXhlblt A. It's the

o o v PR
— U

State nghway Department and West American Corporation,

and they own fee minerals in the northeast quarter of

" —

S ——— —
_Section 17.7

0. What about the other parties of the JOA?

A, The other partles to the JOA, they ve elther

AN —— S i R

signed the JOA, or we've entered 1nto a term a551gnment

Q. éould you summarize your contacts with the
parties being pooled?
A. Yes. First, West American Corporation is

unlocatable. The records of the Public Regulation
Commission show that its corporate charter was revoked
in 1958. When Lance 0il & Gas Company drilled the
Fruitland Coal and Pictured Cliffs wells in 2004 and
2005, in Section 17, it tried to locate the company, and
it found out that it had filed for bankruptcy. And
there are also no known successors.

Q. What about the Highway Department?

A. The Highway Department, we sent a proposal
letter, marked as Exhibit 3. We sent that on March
11th, 2013. And I also followed up with the e-mail
marked as Exhibit 4, and I then called and spoke to the

Department's attorney. And they were not interested in

joining or leasing the well, so they told us to go ahead

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 and force pool them. And they also were force pooled in
2 2005 by Lance 0il & Gas Company.
3 Q. In your opinion, has XTO made a good-faith

4 effort to obtain the voluntary joinder of the interest

5 owners 1in the well?
© A. Yes, we have.
7 0. And would you identify Exhibit 5 and discuss

8 the cost of the well?

9 A. Yes. Exhibit 5 1s the AFE for the well. The
10 well has an estimated dry-hole cost of approximately
11 2,775,000 and a completed well cost of about 3,746,000,

12 totaling around 6,521,000.

13 Q. And are these costs in line with the cost of
14 other horizontal wells drilled in northwest New Mexico?
15 A. Yes, they are.

16 Q. Do you request that XTO be appointed operator

17 of the well?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. Do you have a recommendation of the overhead
20 - o

21 A. Yes. We request that $10,000 a month be

22 allowed for drilling the well and $1,000 a month be

/

allowed for producing the well, which matches our {Sé// .

o
in whi the other working interest“iziifﬁ_glgned'off

25 on. T

23

24
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1 0. And aredjhégg'amounts equivalent to those

2 normally charged by XTO in this area?

3 A. Yes, 1t is. 1It's what we used in the two

4 previous horizontal wells that we drilled earlier this
5 year.

6 Q. Do you request that these rates be adjusted

7 periodically as provided by the COPAS accounting

8 procedure?
9 A. Yes.
10 0. And do you request that the costs -- the

11 maximum cost plus 200-percent risk charge for the

12 interest owners who have nonconsent in the well?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Were the parties being pooled notified of this

15 hearing? ;
16 A. Yes. Exhibit 6 is an Affidavit of Notice to

17 the Highway Department, and on the next page, Exhibit 7,

18 is the Affidavit of Publication from the Farmington

19 paper regarding West American.

20 Q. And as to the nonstandard unit, who was
21 notified? 7 \
22 A. Exhikbfit 8 is a ljist of interest owners in the

Y

e
23 northwest quart of ction 17. We notified these

c—

24 parties, as shown on Exhibits 9 and 10 on the following

25 pages.

s

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

09e107cd-e9f7-4d7a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 10 %

Q. Now, you notified the northwest guarter of

Section 17. Conceivably, the well could, I suppose, be

extended over to that, but as to other acreage

ZB;;gund;ng\yggf proposed nonstandard project area, who

is the operator?

Q. As to contracting the ChaCha-Gallup pool, who
is the mineral owner of the south half of the northwest
quarter of Section 162 - ‘\\

- A. That would be state land, and XTO is tg;\l
lg;§ee. And we gave notice t9/éhe Land Office, as/ggéwn
on Exhibit 11.

Q. Were Exhibits 1 through 11 prepared by you or
under your supervisicon or compiled under company
business records?

A. Yes.

Q. And in your ¢pinion, is the granting of this
application in the interest of conservation and the
prevention of waste?

A. Yes.

Q. And, for example, if we can't get this

=

accomplished, there would be no way to join West

. _— SRS

American in the well unit?

A. Correct. They're not locatable.

Q. Not locatable.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

09e107cd-e9f7-4d7 a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



Page 11
1 Thank you.

2 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I'd move the
3 admission of Exhibits 1 through 11.
4 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Exhibits 1 through 11

5 will be admitted.

6 (XTO Energy Exhibit Numbers 1 through

7 11 were offered and admitted into

8 evidence.)

9 MR. BRUCE: And I have no further questions

10 of the witness.

11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Brooks?
12 EXAMINER BROOKS: No questions.
13 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Mr. Goetze?
14 EXAMINER GOETZE: No questions of this

15 witness.
16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: We talked about DOT.
17 Does the DOT own any mineral interests? Sometimes you

18 mentioned DOT. DOT is an agency, at least to the 0il

19 Conservation Division. So what's going on there?
20 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, if you look at
21 Exhibit 1B, you can see that there are streets and

22 highways going through Sections 16 and 17. And when the
23 government either acquired rights-of-way for these
24 highways -- and I think mainly what we're looking at is

25 Highway 64. It was done by the state, and sometimes

AUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COU
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Page 12

they bought easements; sometimes they condemned them.
Sometimes when they got the easement, there was actually
a deed, and they conveyed the minerals under the
highway. And so the State Highway Dep me OWRE"
A e
little bits and pieces of minerals.
I've had to force pool them several times
in Eddy County, up in Colfax County, places like that,
and they have never responded to any lease offer or any

other thing. They just refuse to do anything. I don't

know why. They could get a better deal if they would

lease. —~ \é;
And under state law, it's not treatedlaik
the Land Commissioner. You can't force pool the Land
Commissioner. But this is treated, essentially, as fee
land, which is why we're pooling.
EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, okay.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM:

Q. Okay. Let's talk about ownership in those two
sections. I know you mentioned -- what's your name
again?

A. Cy Zimmerman.

Q. Zimmerman. Okay.

In Sections 16 and 17, can you describe the \%

—

nature of the land ownership? mwj///

h JES———

—.
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1 A. Yes. XTO is primarily the working interest §
2 owner in the south half of Section 16 —-
3 MR. BRUCE: North half. ?
4 A. -- the north half of Section 16 and also the

5 northeast quarter.

|
o 0. (BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM) And your working §
|

7 interest is in the north half of Section 16, right? %
38 A. Correct. ?
9 Q. And then, obviously, the north half of 17? %

10 A. Correct. %

11 Q. You don't own anything in the south half of the

12 section?

13 A. W%\EEZE‘?8??.WQ€E£PQNEEEE£?St in the south

14 Ealf. In both sections, wefrg primarily thé interesﬁ a

15 ,owner.

16 Q. My question is: You know the Mancos -- you are

17 going to deplete that ChaCha-Gallup. Presume you

18 deplete it. You deplete it, and then you go to the

19 Basin-Mancos, and the Basin-Mancos is developed in the
20 320. And you can't drill your horizontal gas well on
21 the 320. I just want to know. Is this because of the

22 land, geology or engineering that you added that quarter _
—l L et

e VR

23 section to the 32Q‘in Section 177

e

24 A. I believe it's because we wanted to maximiz%12§;

25 our leasehold interest and to maximize with the

—~

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 intervals that we're going or the length of the |

2 wellbore. That's why we chose this project area.

3 Q. What do you mean by maximize the leasehold %
4 interest?

5 A. To where we don't have to add on more acreage\\\ ;
6 within the well unit. You know, we'll -- to shorten the §
7+  project area, we are able to maximize our leasehold

8 interest in the wellbore.

9 Q. So you are saying -- you are a land person,

10  right?

11 A. Yes, sir.

12 Q. And you are saying it's because of a land
13 issue, so not really geology or anything else?

14 A. Well, there might be -- our geologist can

15 testify as to why there are geology reasons.

16 There is an existing well pad that we -

~N
)
17 wanted to use in the northeast-northeast of Section 16.
¢
18 Q. I understand that.
19 A. And so we wanted to be able to use that one,

20 and that's why we chose that surface location. And

21 that's primarily the reason.

22 Q. Yeah, I know. I know you have an interest.

23 You have the right to drill where you want to drill, but
24 I want to determine the exact reason why you want to do

25 that. Don't get me wrong. Any operator has, you know,

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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the right to drill where they want, but the manner of

the drilling is where I come in. And that's why I'm _

L m— et

asking this question, to determine whether -- what you

L m——

are doing 1s best by engineering, land or geology. And

— —

if I can get that, that would help in determining what

to do.

The standard unit is 320 in the
Basin-Mancos, and if the standard unit is 320 -- I know
you are outside that, I know. That has nothing to do

with what we're talking about. But if you can drill

that 320, it seems like -- I mean, I don't know. Since
you own an interest in both sections -- you own 1in
Section 16 and Section 17, so maybe -- I don't know --

you have a geologist in here who can say why you want to
do that, so we can begin to look at it.

You say it's because of the land, but now
we need to evaluate that situation on whether it's

engineering or geology-wise --

A, Okay.
Q. -~ because all we're looking at to be able to
explore the most hydrocarbons, the most -- project from

those things, and how do we do it in an orderly manner.
That's what we're doing, you know. And that's why --
the operators and the OCD, because the operator -- if I

were you, I would do what you're doing. But if you're

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 in my shoes, you would do what I'm doing. Okay? So v

2 don't get me wrong. I'm trying to ask all these

3 questions because I want to know how best to exploit %
4 these minerals to be a win-win situation for everybody. ;
5 A. Okay. And I'll -~ %
6 Q. You understand why I'm asking the question? %
7 A. Yes, sir, I do. And our engineer's not here ;

8 right now, and I can get back with you at a later date

9 regarding the engineering reasons.
10 0. You don't have any -- you have a geologist, but
11 no engineer?
12 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, we do have a

13 geologist. And I would state that we did have an
14 engineer at the prior hearing to discuss these matters,
15 and I would refer you to Case -- I forget the case

16 number, but the one that resulted in Order R-13714, and

17 you did question the engineer about the engineering

18 reasons.

19 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: In this general are ?,lﬁfg
20 MR. BRUCE: This Spetific well unit. %Y “
21 EXAMINER BROOCKS: It was the same well?

22 EXAMINER GOETZE: We're back again.

23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, the same well.

24 MR. BRUCE: Same well.

25 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Why are we here, then?

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, in the order I

2 mentioned, the Division denied pooling --

3 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Huh?

4 MR. BRUCE: Thngivision denied pooling - ;
5 because there were two different pools in the well unit.
6 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Right.

7 MR. BRUCE: I don't agree, but, regardless,
8 that's what the Division did.

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: That's what I did.
10 MR. BRUCE: So now we've got to go back --
11 I told you I could cause problems by myself,
12 Mr. Examiner.
13 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: ©Now you are refreshing
14 my memory, because we get a bunch of these things.
15 MR. BRUCE: It was two months ago, and
16 there was an engineer. And you can go back and look at

17 that transcript, but our geologist can adeqguately

18 describe why the wellbore traverses this particular
19 line.
20 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That's what I want to

21 hear. And I'll be interested in getting out of here and

22 reading that other testimony in this. particular_case.

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: It's not the same case

24 number, but you have the order number. You can find the

o e B (KL
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MR. BRUCE: This well, this exact well.

EXAMINER BROOKS: Same one.

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. Now, if pooling

MR. BRUCE:/” Just the M:

—

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: You may step down.

MR. BRUCE: Just one question, %
Zimmerman. ”
CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. BRUCE:
Q. Mr. Ezeanyim did ask you about mineral owners.

Section 16 includes the underlying mineral owners --

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

XTO.

No, no. The mineral owner of the fee --
Oh. The state.

The State of New Mexico?

Uh-huh.

And in the northeast quarter of Section 17,

what type of land is that?

A.

0.

Fee.
Okay. Thank you.

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So 16 is state land,

and 17 1is fee?

MR. BRUCE: Yes.

o
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1 CHARLES MUSEKAMP,

2 after having been previously sworn under oath, was
3 questioned and testified as follows:

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. BRUCE: %

6 Q. Mr. Musekamp, could you spell your name for the
7 court record and the Examiner?

8 A. My last name-?

9 0. Yes.

10 A. That's M, as in Mary, U-S-E-K-A-M, as in Mary,
11 P, as in Paul, Musekamp.
12 Q. Mr. Musekamp, who do you work with and in what

13 capacity?

14 A. XTO Energy in Fort Worth, Texas. I am the

15 geologist in the Rocky Mountain region.

16 Q. Have you previously testified before the

17 Division?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And were your credentials as a petroleum

20 geologist accepted as a matter of record?

21 A. Yes.

22 Q. Are you familiar with the geology involved in

23 this application?
24 A. Yes.

25 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I tender

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1  Mr. Musekamp as an exert petroleum geologist é
2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So qualified. ?
3 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Musekamp, tell the Examiner i
4 why you want to drill -- why XTO chose this |

5 particular-shape wellbore for this well. First of all,
6 could you identi Exhibit 127

7 A. This is a Iocation map of Township 29 North, 14
8 West, around Sections 16 and 17. It shows our wellbore
9 trajectory going towards the west. S-H stands for
10 surface hole, and B-H stands for bottom hole. .Also

11 shown are offset wells Those shown in yellow are.

e T T e, . e

12 Gallup produc1hg wells

R bt
13 Q. And that particular zone that those Gallup
14 producing wells produce from is what you're attempting

15 to duplicate in the Ropco 16-1 well?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. Let's move on to your type log, Exhibit 13.

18 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Let me clarify one

19 thing on this map. The yellow dots are -- which ones

20 are producing from the Mancos° o
T e - e —~ \

21 - THE WITNESS: Gallup is a formation within

2 the whole Mancos interval, so Gallup is technically a

23 cos—prodwcer. \\\

24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: This is very confusirng.

25 THE WITNESS: For me, too.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I don't know which one

2 is which.

3 THE WITNESS: The nomenclature is very

4 confusing. ;
5 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So those yellow are

6 producing from where this well is going to be produced
7 from? & \

8 THE WITNESS: Correct.

\u
9 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: But when you said the

10 Gallup, you're taf%ing Basin-Mancos. Then you dre

11 talking about the Géllup. So it is confusing.

12 THE WITNESS: Yes.

13 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Mr. Musekamp, on this plat, are

14 there any Basin-Mancos wells?

15 A. These are ChaCha-Gallup wells.

16 Q. Right. Okay.

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: No Basin-Mancos here?
18 THE WITNESS: No.

19 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: That is what you call

20 the Gallup pool?
21 THE WITNESS: Correct.
22 MR. BRUCE: Well, that's what the Division

23 calls it. o

24 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah. We use the%)

25 inte&phangeably, right?

TR
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MR. BRUCE: Yeah. Under the i;zf forget

the order numbers. Everything outside the ChdCha-Gallup
is Basin-Mancos.

EXAMINER BROOKS: { Or 12984.

(Laughter.)

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: You wrote it. That's
why you say that.

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, not just because I
wrote it, but there are other reasons why I remember it
(laughter) .

Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Let's move on to your type log,
and maybe we can discuss for Mr. Ezeanyim a little

further the specific zone you're looking to test in the

Ropco 16-1 well, and what these other Gallup wells have

e

tested. Andqulng back a llttle bit, what is the

vintag of these Gallup wells?

ﬂ-'/'
A. Vintage, '50s, '60s. g
7 7 B . //
Q. drll}ed—qﬁffe sometlme ago?
A. Yeah, before my vintage.
Q. Go ahead with the type log.

A. The type log is the Kirtland State 1 in the

southwest quarter of the northwest quarter of Section

16. It's just southwest of our wellbore, if you look

down on the location map to the left. On the right,

it's a type log. Gamma ray curve on the left-hand side;
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1 resistivity curve on the right-hand side. And if you

2 lock approximately at 4,675, you'll see a nice yellow

3 sandstone developed. It's about six feet in thickness.
4 It‘sféalled the Tocito interval, and that is the target
5 wé will be targeting.

6 Q. And then move on to Exhibit 14.

7 A. Exhibit 14 is -- this is a two-part exhibit.

8 Exhibit 14 is an A to A prime, west to east

9 stratigraphic cross section. It's just south of our

10 wellbore, as you can see.

11 The following page is that stratigraphic

12 cross section. It's hung on the upper Gallup marker.

13 It's the first marker you see on that cross secticn.

14 And you can see that this sandstone, the target \ ,2
15 interval, is laterally continuous across thg‘area,»and, /
16 again, tha£ is the target we are choosing.

17 Q. And when you're loocking at these wells, in

18 particular the Kirtland State, that well was marginally

19 preoductive, correct?

20 A. Yes. Uh-huh.

21 ‘ EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Which well?

22 MR. BRUCE: The middle one, Mr. Examiner.
23 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Oh, you're looking at

24 the wells now.

25 MR. BRUCE: The cross section.

e

e
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1 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay.
2 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) And that well is the one that
3 was located on that 80 acres that you seek to move from

4  one pool to the other, cofrect? ™

5 A..~ Correct. : /)

6 é\_} What 1is Exhibit 157

7 A. Exhibit 15 is a structure map. It's a 25-foot
8 subsea structure map on top of one of the Gallup markers

9 shown on the type log. You can see it's about a one,

10 one—and—a—half degree dip towards the west.

11 Q. And does XTO prefer to Egye_the'ppttom hole -
12 locapiqn_gggig‘from the surface locatiop?” <¢ /%f
13 A. Correct.

14 Q. And let's move on to your final exhibit. You ‘
15 have a production bubble map at Exhibit 16. Could you

16 discuss that briefly? l

17 A. This 1s a production bubble map of the

18 surrounding Gallup wells. Green is oil. Red is gas.

19 And the bubbles are scaled to the amount of oil

/
20 produced. The npmbers 1n$gieen3next to each well is the

,/

21 cumulatlve\\\l productlon v The numbers in black next to
22 each well is the cumulatlve ~gas production.
23 You can see that we're’yrying to maximize

24 the length of our wellbore by goingfhorizontally in

25 these two sections, as well as getting as close to these

v

T
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producers as we can to maximize our production.

Q. So you wouldn't want to be drilling down to the
south and the north parts of 20 and 21, would you, at
this point, because they have produced substantial
amounts already?

A. Right. Right. Correct.

Q. But you would like to be near them -- somewhat
near them?

A. Correct.

Q. From a geologic standpoint, will each quarter

section in“thqnwel}wggit more or less contribute to _

production?
A. Yes.
Q. Regarding the reguest to excise 80 acres from

the ChaCha-Gallup pool, I think you already answered
this, but are there any geologic differenéé§\§F the
productive portion of the ChaCha-Gallup in Section 16
and the Basin—Mafcoérin the rest of thewacreage?

A. No. Thz\éeglogy is very homogeneous. It's

—
very consistent across this area.

eaeesini s vrmim v e e : —
fN\EfMNWIf the acreage was removed, would you ever
recommend to -- if the ChaCha-Gallup pool wasn't

contracted, would you ever recommend to XTO's management
to drill a vertical Gallup well in that 80 acres or even

a 80-acre horizontal well?

T,
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A. No.
n/////MNN\
Q. Based opthe origzbal well on that acreage, it
looks l{ke it would be a waste of money.
y p

A. ‘Subeconomic.

Q. Werekﬁkﬁibits 12 through 16 prepared by you or

under your direction? \
A. ‘wIpey were prepared by me.
Q. And iﬂmyournopinion,»will the granting of this

application be in the interest of conservation and the
prevention of waste?
A. Yes.

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I move the
admission of Exhibits 12 through 16.

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Exhibits 12 through 16
will be admitted.

(XTO Energy Exhibit Numbers 12 through 16

were offered and admitted into evidence.)

MR. BRUCE: No further questions of the
witness.

EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Do you have any
guestions?

EXAMINER BROOKS: No gquestions.

EXAMINER GOETZE: Just one question.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY EXAMINER GOETZE:
Q. On your thickness of you're a, what's your

average thickness you're looking at?

A. Six to eight feet thickness. %
Q. Six to eight feet. And that's consistent '

across there? ;
A. It gets thicker as you go towards the south,

approximately 15 to 20 feet, as you get in the gut of
that ChaCha-Gallup pool.

Q. No other questions. Thank you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY EXAMINER EZEANYIM:

Q. Since you don't have your engineer here, let's
look at geclogy, because you say you added a quarter
section. I want to know really whether the quarter
section is supposed to be added to that 320. You are
the land person, so you are going to answer the
question.

So the question I want to ask is why we
added that quarter section to the 320. I know I'm going
to read the other case that was on this, that I'm going

to read. I haven't read it. But I want to hear from

you, as the geologist, why we wanted -- okay. Now, we
ee that formation is very thin, six to eight feet.

can s

S

e
e

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

09e107cd-e9f7-4d7a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



Page 28

1 So is this six to eight feet across given that bond --
2 or that variation from Section 16 to Section 177

3 A. It'll vary somewhat, but on average, it'll be
4 six to eight feet across the wellbore trajectory. The
5 thickness, like I said before, decreases as you get to
6 the north, so we are looking at six to eight feet.

7 Q. So if we were to drill the holes, how would

8 that -- you couldn't drill the 320. You have to drill
9 the 480. I want to know why you want to drill that 480
10 as opposed to -- you know, I asked the land person, and
11 he told me you were going to answer that question. So I
12 wanted to know why we added that quarter section there
13 to make the 480.

14 A. From a geoclogist --~

15 0. He said he's land. Because, you know, he's a
16 land person. All he has to do is go: I'm working for
17 XTO; my land is 480. Then you, as the geologist, are
18 the one who is going to convince me that that 480 is

19 really well worth to be drilled, because I'm looking at

20 the variability of that section -- of those sections.
21 Ownership is not identical. There are a lot of working
22 interests in there. I know you did your public notice,

23 but I wanted to see from the geology and engineering --

SN A,

24 unfortunately, there is no engineer here to tell me

25 anything. But.from the geology, I want you to convince

o
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the Division why we added that quarter section.

%;///W%L43*§%¥éﬁgmtQ~maximlzg our production to make
o rr— ‘\"\

his -- make this well economical. So to adgkgﬁotngi

N .
section, we'll get more feet per horizontal, adding mor )
production and making this well economical. ég;kjﬁéiiz

0 Did you do any“Eﬁtculationﬁf6”a€ﬁ6ﬁ5trate that?
A. The engineer has.

Q. Who did?

A. The engineer, reservoir engineer.

Q. If you can convince me now that if you drill
320, you are going to lose money, but if you drill 480,
you're going to make money and demonstrate the
calculations, whatever you are going to expect in this
formation, we might start looking at it.

A.  Uh-huh. ~ \

Q. <:%ut we can't just make the decision in a

vacuum. T —_— ) ”//
Right. o

Q. Yoﬁwéée the point I'm trying to make?

A. Yeah. But, I mean, research suggesté;”the,\ o }
e
&nger the lateral, the more stages you have, the betterji)
production. -

Q. I understand that. Yeah, I do understand that.

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And, again, I understand 320 is a long lateral.
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That's one mile, right?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. You added another half mile to that, making it
480. I know you can do that,\but now if we do that, I'm
concerned about the mod%ézgt of he acreage around the

area. |

A. Repeat your question. I'm sorry. |
QN L, ?
Q. I mean, I'm concerned about the movement of the
acreage around your -- the one you are developing.

Ownership is not identical, so other applicants will
have to come here. I want to know how they are going to

drill the areas around, ngmknow, thew480 acreage. You

are trying to let OCD form a prOJect area of 480. So I

. —— e

e v, Y-

want to understand why the operator wants to do that so

s ——

that we can begin to qggelder the information. ' Is it

T —— -

land? Is it geology? 1Is it engineering? And we can

take all of them into consideration and make a

recommendation.
A. Uh-huh.
Q. Don't get me wrong. I'm not being hard on you.

I'm just trylng to do my Jjob to make sure we do it
\ ......

rlght We have to see all the development of thls area.
You have the right to drill, because you own interest
there, but Now that s why we are here, to make sure we -

do it right.

TR
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1 A. I understand.

2 Q. I have looked at the geoclogy. The geology has

3 demonstrated the formation is very thin, and T an't

4 know how much you can get out of that. I don't have any
5 gglculftions tgﬂdemgnstrqggwtpgpvwﬁen youlgrossithat

6 section boundary, you're gg}qgwpgvget more. Of course,
7 Imggow longer lat;;als produce morg_ggggmfbogpm}gﬁerals.

8 A one-mile latera;Jggleng.  This is gas. And two miles

—— T ™

‘ -
9 / is okay, you know. Three miles, you can do that. EE%\

i

i K
10 the question is: How do you do it? Do you just do it}

11 d violate other people's correlative rights?
~.. *“:w.wf,.._ ) e e =T e e, '
12 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Counselor, I'm sorry

13 you didn't bring the engineer. I have to go back and

14 read that previous case.
15 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner --
16 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I wanted to listen to

17 the engineer tell me why.

18 MR. BRUCE: I believe you asked those
19 questions the last time, which is why we didn't bring

20 her back. But I would point out that all of Mr.

21 Musekamp's._.map, 1f you look -- and I will ask him a
—— \"M-,‘ S o mme—
22 question.
) ~
23 Q. (BY MR. BRUCE) Is the yellow acreage the

24 acreage which XTO owns or operates?

———— e — . S
e T

25 A. Yeah, operates.
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1 MR. BRUCE: So, Mr. Examiner, when you're 1

2 talking about -- first of all, this is the first well

3 out here, and as Mr. Musekamp said, they want to

4 maximize the recovery, and that was gone into at the

5 last hearing.

6 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I understand that.

7 MR. BRUCE: Well, Mr. Examiner, it's my

8 point that that's enough, and they have testified about
9 it.

10 But 1f you look at the operatorshlp, XTO (/

U e

— e N S

11 owns or operates all of the offsettlng acreage. They'r

e e TN e e e T e T T
12 not out to mess up their own development They operate
B - e -~ T
17y all offeettlng acreage. They re not here to mess up
14 thelr own development Pplans—— _—
15 So I guess I'm kind of getting frustrated

16 because the Division rules allow you to apply for a

17 nonstandard unit. At the last hearing and this hearing,

18 we have testlfled that they hope to maximize recovery by

— P —

19 extendlng the wellbore, and that has been testlfled to

20 at numerous horizontal wells in the southeast part of

s

21 the state.

Te—— e e e e e e 5

22 And, you know, you might be offended, you
23 know, 1f some Operator X owned the offsetting acreage

24 and they were being excluded. Nohodywlg\gelng_excluded
saerdded

25  for r _any land reason or any other purpose in this matter.

e e e
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1 If XTO is successful in this well, I'm sure they will

2 develop offsets, but you've got to get the first well

3 drilled.

4 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Yeah, Counselor, I

5 understand what you're saying. Yes, the rule says that.

6 The rule says that you can form that standard -- yeah,

A you can form it. But if you want me -- if you want us ,
8 tQ compulsory pool it, that's,andifﬁgfgptrtbing. If yoA
9E formulate [sic] everybody participates in drilling the |

y

well, you shouldn't be here. But now you are asking th §

1 bivis;on to compu}sq;y»pgg}‘EEéF nonstandard project 7.
12 area.

13 ) MR. BRUCE: And Mr. Musekamp has stated

14 that the reservoir is pretty -- %E/EigVLQ eigﬁt’feet;

15 across the entirevlgnggb of the wellbore, and that's

~—

16 what they're looking to get. If that's the case and
S~ \’—\“”“\\_«_ e . .
17 that's what his geology shows, you know, then the

18 wellbore will be similar in each quarter section. And I
\______\_/\ e e - ——

19 just -~ I guess I'm kind of getting frustrated at this
B e T e, e T SR - .

20 point.
e

P—-

21 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: You don't have to get

22 frustrated, but you didn't bring your engineer to answer

23 those questions. I wanted to take-imto consideration

e N P ,
24 hether those (4 1 those units contribute equally to ./ r

\ | e

25 the well. Tl

S
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1 MR. BRUCE: And I would ask that the 2

2 administrative record from -- I forget the case number,

3 but that Order R-13714 be adopted into the record. And,

4 like I said, this is the second time we've been through
5 this.

6 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: 137142

7 MR. BRUCE: Yes.

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: And then you had your

9 engineer here that day?
10 MR. BROUCE: Yes.
11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: I mean, we do a lot of

12 these; I can't have it in my head.

13 MR. BRUCE: Well, I understand that,

14 Mr. Examiner. I have a hard time remembering these

15 cases, too, but we did have an engineer here last time
16 to answer all of your questions.

17 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Okay. I will look at
18 that.

19 Do you have anything?

20 EXAMINER GOETZE: I have no more questions.
21 EXAMINER BROOKS: I would like to ask more
22 gquestions. Do you have any questions?

23 EXAMINER GOETZE: No. I'll pass.

24 EXAMINER BROOKS: I thought of something.
25 CROSS EXAMINATION

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

09e107cd-e9f7-4d7a-b2f1-f0ff3a274b38



Page 35
1  BY EXAMINER BROOKS:

2 Q. What was the reason why this well was not

3 extended into the northwest quarter since XTO owns that

4 also, northwest quarter of 177

5 A. Based off interest, perhaps. %
6 Q. Not a geologic reason, then?

7 A. Not from a geology perspective, no.

8 Q. I assume there is some limitation. You

9 expressed the proposition that the longer you drill the
10 lateral, the more efficiency you get, because, of

11 course -- and that makes sense, because if you end at

12 330 from the western boundary of 660 -- 660 from the

13 western boundary of Section 16 and then you didn't start
14 the next one, 660 eastern boundary of 17, you'd be

15 losing 1,280 feet of horizontal penetration.

16 A. Uh-huh.
17 Q. That makes sense. But, of course, there is
18 some limit to it because you can't -- it's not economie——

19 to drill horizqntals beyond some point.

200 A, Right.

21 Q. And my impression is of the industry that

22 length is getting longer, but it's not infinite. So I
23 was wondering if that was the reason you stopped at the

24 middle of Section 17 or -- but as the geologist argued,

25 really, or told us, it's not a geologic --
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1 A. Right.
2 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: So you might want to
3 use the engineer, because it's not a land question. We

4  already know the land. So whenever you come here, bring 2

5 _your engineer. §
6 r“~‘_hN\w—~——\\\XH} more questions? ;
7 EXAMINER BROOKS: No more questions.

8 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: Anything further,

9 Counselor?

10 MR. BRUCE: No, sir.
11 EXAMINER EZEANYIM: At this point, Case

12 Number 15020 will be taken under advisement.

13 (Case Number 15020 concludes, 9:50 a.m.)
14
15
16
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